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Re: Norris School District #160 

 OCR Complaint No. 07221007 

 

Dear XXXXX:  

 

This letter is to notify you of the disposition of the above-referenced complaint filed on October 

4, 2021, with the U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights (OCR) against the 

Norris School District #160, located in Firth, Nebraska. The complaint alleged the District 

discriminated against the Complainant’s son (the Student) based on disability and retaliated 

against the Student.  

 

OCR enforces Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504), 29 U.S.C. § 794, and 

its implementing regulation at 34 C.F.R. Part 104, which prohibit discrimination based on 

disability in programs and activities that receive federal financial assistance. OCR also enforces 

Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (Title II), 42 U.S.C. §§ 12131 et seq., and 

its implementing regulation at 28 C.F.R. Part 35, which prohibit discrimination against qualified 

individuals with disabilities by public entities, including public education systems and 

institutions, regardless of whether they receive federal financial assistance. These laws also 

prohibit retaliation against any individual who asserts rights or privileges under these laws or 

who files a complaint, testifies, assists, or participates in a proceeding under these laws.  

 

Because the District receives federal financial assistance from the Department of Education and 

is a public entity, the District is subject to Section 504, Title II, and OCR’s jurisdiction. 

Additional information about the laws OCR enforces is available on our website at 

http://www.ed.gov/ocr.  

 

OCR investigated whether the District:  

1. discriminated against the Student based on disability by failing to fully implement the 

terms of the Student’s Individualized Education Program (IEP) while he was quarantined 

in fall 2021, denying him a free appropriate public education, in violation of Section 504 

and Title II;  

http://www.ed.gov/
http://www.ed.gov/ocr
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2. discriminated against the Student based on disability by changing the Student’s 

placement on or about November 15, 2021, without first re-evaluating him or convening 

the Student’s IEP Team, in violation of Section 504; and  

3. retaliated against the Student by requiring him to quarantine at home unnecessarily after 

alleging he was exposed to COVID-19, in violation of Section 504 and/or Title II.  

 

During OCR’s investigation, OCR interviewed the Complainant and seven District staff. OCR 

also reviewed documentation provided by the Complainant and the District, including: District 

policies and procedures regarding the evaluation and placement of students with disabilities; 

District policies related to the COVID-19 pandemic; District correspondence; and the Student’s 

cumulative education file.  

 

Before OCR completed its investigation, the District expressed its interest in resolving 

Allegations 1 and 2 pursuant to Section 302 of OCR’s Case Processing Manual.1 OCR found 

compliance concerns for Allegations 1 and 2 and determined it was appropriate to resolve these 

allegations with a Resolution Agreement. For Allegation 3, OCR found insufficient evidence to 

conclude that the District retaliated against the Student. 

 

Legal Standards  

 

Free Appropriate Public Education  

 

The Section 504 regulation, at 34 C.F.R. § 104.4(a), states that no qualified individual shall, 

based on disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or otherwise be 

subjected to discrimination under any program or activity which receives federal financial 

assistance. Title II prohibits the same form of discrimination by public entities. Therefore, OCR 

applies the Section 504 standards when analyzing the same claims under Title II.    

 

The Section 504 implementing regulation, at 34 C.F.R. § 104.33, requires that a recipient of 

federal financial assistance that operates a public elementary or secondary education program or 

activity provide a free appropriate public education to each qualified individual with a disability 

who is in the recipient’s jurisdiction, regardless of the nature or severity of the person’s 

disability. An appropriate education is defined as regular or special education and related aids 

and services that are designed to meet the individual needs of students with disabilities as 

adequately as the needs of non-disabled students are met, and that are developed in accordance 

with the procedural requirements of 34 C.F.R. §§ 104.34-104.36 pertaining to educational 

setting, evaluation and placement, and due process protections. OCR interprets the Title II 

regulation, at 28 C.F.R. §§ 35.103(a) and 35.130(b)(1)(ii) and (iii), to require school districts to 

provide a free appropriate public education to the same extent required under the Section 504 

regulation. 

 

 

Evaluation and Placement  

 
1 The Case Processing Manual is available at: https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/ocrcpm.pdf.  

https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/ocrcpm.pdf
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The Section 504 regulation, at 34 C.F.R. § 104.35(a), requires a school district to conduct an 

evaluation of any student who needs or is believed to need special education or related services 

before taking any action with respect to the initial placement of the person in regular or special 

education and any subsequent significant change in placement.  

 

OCR considers an exclusion from the educational program of more than ten school days a 

significant change of placement. OCR would also consider transferring a student from one type 

of program to another or terminating or significantly reducing a related service a significant 

change in placement.  

34 C.F.R. § 104.35(b) requires a school district to establish standards and procedures for the 

evaluation and placement of persons who, because of handicap, need or are believed to need 

special education or related services which ensure that: (1) tests and other evaluation materials 

have been validated for the specific purpose for which they are used and are administered by 

trained personnel in conformance with the instructions provided by their producer; (2) tests and 

other evaluation materials include those tailored to assess specific areas of educational need and 

not merely those which are designed to provide a single general intelligence quotient; and (3) 

tests are selected and administered so as best to ensure that, when a test is administered to a 

student with impaired sensory, manual, or speaking skills, the test results accurately reflect the 

student's aptitude or achievement level or whatever other factor the test purports to measure, 

rather than reflecting the student's impaired sensory, manual, or speaking skills (except where 

those skills are the factors that the test purports to measure). 

According to 34 C.F.R. § 104.35(c), when interpreting evaluation data and making placement 

decisions, a school district must: (1) draw upon information from a variety of sources, including 

aptitude and achievement tests, teacher recommendations, physical condition, social or cultural 

background, and adaptive behavior; (2) establish procedures to ensure that information obtained 

from all such sources is documented and carefully considered; (3) ensure that the placement 

decision is made by a group of persons, including persons knowledgeable about the child, the 

meaning of the evaluation data, and the placement options; and (4) ensure that the placement 

decision is made in conformity with 104.34. 

34 C.F.R. § 104.35(d) requires a school district to establish procedures for periodic reevaluation 

of students who have been provided special education and related aids and services. A 

reevaluation procedure consistent with the Individuals with Disabilities Education Acts is one 

means of meeting this requirement.  

 

Retaliation  

 

The regulation implementing Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, at 34 C.F.R. § 100.7(e) 

prohibits recipients from intimidating, threatening, coercing or discriminating against any 

individual for the purpose of interfering with any right or privilege secured by regulations 

enforced by OCR or because one has made a complaint, testified, assisted or participated in any 

manner in an investigation, proceedings or hearing held in connection with a complaint. This 

requirement is incorporated by reference into the Section 504 regulations at 34 C.F.R. § 104.61.  
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The regulation implementing Title II, at 28 C.F.R. § 35.134, includes a similar provision.  

 

In analyzing an allegation of retaliation against a recipient, OCR looks for evidence of an 

adverse action that it causally connected to a protected activity for which the recipient has not 

offered a legitimate, non-pretextual reason.  

 

Factual Background 

 

The District is located in Lancaster County, Nebraska and has an elementary, intermediate, 

middle, and high school. The intermediate school, which the Student attends, serves grades three 

through five. All four schools are located on one campus and are in walking distance of each 

other.  

 

At the start of the 2021-22 school year, the Student transferred into the District as a XXXXX with 

an IEP from his previous school district. The Student’s IEP from his previous district provided 

for 25 minutes of special education services 9 times per month, and 15 minutes of speech 

language services 4 times per month. The IEP also provided that the Student would participate in 

the general education classroom with accommodations to the fullest degree appropriate. The 

District reported it implemented the Student’s IEP from his previous school district until his IEP 

Team met to create a new IEP. 

 

According to documentation the District provided, on September 16, 2021, the Student’s IEP 

Team met and created a new IEP (2021 IEP). The 2021 IEP provides for 30 minutes of special 

education services 15 times per month; 20 minutes of speech-language therapy 7 times per 

month; and 20 minutes of occupational services 2 times per month. The 2021 IEP states the 

Student will participate in the general education classroom throughout the school day, will have 

an alternative curriculum, and will take sensory breaks as needed.  

 

The District reported that when the fall 2021 semester started, the District was under a mandate 

from the Lincoln/Lancaster County Health Department (LLCHD) to require all individuals to 

wear face masks within school buildings. The District offered exemptions from the masking 

requirement on medical and religious grounds. During the fall semester, the District approved 

medical-mask exemptions for nine students; seven of these students were also receiving special 

education and related services.  

 

The District granted the Complainant’s request for the Student to have a medical exemption from 

the masking requirement. The Complainant provided the District with a letter from the Student’s 

physician in support of the Student’s request for a medical mask exemption. The letter states that 

the Student’s developmental delay and frequent seizure activity supported the Student’s need for 

an exemption.  

 

According to the District, when students were exposed to COVID-19 during the fall semester, 

the District followed the LLCHD’s guidance when deciding how long to exclude students from 

school. The LLCHD’s guidance provided that students were required to quarantine if they were 

“close contacts” of someone who tested positive for COVID-19. To be considered a “close 

contact,” a student had to be within 6 feet of a COVID-19 positive-person for longer than 15 
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minutes in a 24-hour period.  

 

The District reported that the LLCHD’s guidance stated that students should quarantine at home 

for fourteen days if they were a “close contact.” However, close contacts had the option to self-

monitor as an alternative to quarantine if they were fully vaccinated against COVID-19, 

asymptomatic, and able to wear a face mask for fourteen days. 

 

Services Provided during Quarantines  

 

According to the District, the Student was a close contact of a student who tested positive for 

COVID-19 on Friday, August 27, 2021, and the District required the Student to quarantine at 

home for fourteen days, through September 9. The District reported that the Student was exposed 

to COVID-19 for the second time on October 1, and the District became aware of the exposure 

on October 4. The Student then quarantined for two weeks from the date of his exposure and 

returned to school on October 18.  

 

The Complainant told OCR that the District failed to provide the Student a free appropriate 

public education during these quarantines because the Student received minimal educational 

services.  

 

During interviews with OCR, several District staff reported that it was the District’s practice to 

offer students new learning—the same topics covered in class, rather than review of  topics 

already covered—while they were quarantined at home because of an exposure to COVID-19. 

For example, XXXXX said that she would email a parent the items  she wanted the student to 

complete during a quarantine through the Unique Learning System. Similarly, XXXXX said that 

she provided her students who were not receiving special education services one to two hours’ 

worth of daily assignments to complete during their quarantines.  

 

Regarding the Student’s August to September quarantine, the Student received some special 

education services through Unique. XXXXX emailed the Complainant assignments for the 

Student to complete on Unique from September 1 through 3, but not for the remainder of the 

quarantine. The XXXXX told OCR that while she only assigned the Student specific work to 

complete for several days of the quarantine, the Student had additional assignments he could 

have worked on through Unique if he chose to do so. XXXXX said that she kept track of the 

assignments the Student completed during quarantine to determine whether the Student was 

entitled to compensatory services when he returned.  

 

The District reported that on September 20, XXXXX went on maternity leave, and the Student 

had a long-term substitute XXXXX for the rest of the semester.  

 

Regarding the Student’s October quarantine, the Complainant’s spouse emailed XXXXX on 

October 5, asking why the District had not yet communicated its plan to provide the Student 

schoolwork during the quarantine. In response, XXXXX offered to provide the Student his special 

education services via Zoom. The Complainant’s spouse refused, stating the District was aware 

that extended computer usage triggered the Student’s seizures. According to the Student’s 

Seizure Action Plan, signed by XXXXX on August 12, 2021, fluorescent lighting triggers the 
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Student’s seizures.  

 

None of the evidence provided to date shows that XXXXX assigned the Student materials through 

Unique to complete during either quarantine. The evidence to date also does not show that the 

Student’s IEP team reconvened after his quarantines to determine if the Student needed 

compensatory services.  

 

Significant Change in Placement  

 

The Complainant informed OCR that after the Student received a half-day suspension on 

November 12, 2021, the District relocated the Student to the life skills classroom located in the 

middle school, away from his third-grade peers, which the staff believed would be safer for the 

Student. The Complainant reported that the District made this change without first reevaluating 

the Student or convening his IEP Team.  

 

XXXXX reported that at the start of the fall 2021 semester, the Student was in the general 

education classroom for the entire school day except for when he was pulled out to receive his 

special education and related services. According to documentation provided by the District and 

statements from XXXXX, the Student has a 15-minute recess at 11:25am and 1:15pm, lunch at 

10:55am, and a daily rotating special, including art, music, P.E., library, and counseling, at 

2:35pm.  

 

District staff also reported that while the Student started off the semester having few behavioral 

issues, in late August, his behavior started to worsen, especially in the afternoons. For example, 

staff reported that the Student started throwing and destroying objects in classrooms and had 

injured a paraprofessional. According to XXXXX, sometime in October, the District decided to 

place the Student in the life skills room in the middle school for the afternoons so he could 

receive more support.  

 

XXXXX emailed the Complainant’s spouse on October 19, 2021, stating that the XXXXX was 

going to start meeting the Student at the playground after his 11:25am recess and escort him to 

the life skills room in the middle school. XXXXX said that after this decision was made, the 

Student was not in her classroom for the remainder of the day.  

 

District staff reported that around November, the Student’s behavior started to worsen earlier in 

the school day. The District provided documentation showing that the Student received a half-

day out-of-school suspension on November 12 for punching a staff member. District staff 

reported that later that day, XXXXX decided to move the Student to the middle school full time, 

with the intent for the Student to work his way back to the intermediate school. The Complainant 

told OCR that XXXXX called her on November 12 to inform her that the Student would be 

transitioned to the life skills room at the middle school.  

 

On November 12, the Complainant emailed XXXXX stating that she was concerned that placing 

the Student at the middle school would separate him from his peers. On November 15, the 

Complainant emailed XXXXX, asking if the Student’s IEP Team needed to meet before the 

District could place the Student at the middle school. XXXXX replied that the Student’s IEP 
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Team did not need to meet because the District had only changed his schedule to keep the 

Students and other staff safe, not the services in the Student’s IEP.  

 

District staff reported that the Complainant then requested an IEP meeting, and the team met on 

November 30. According to a prior written notice the District provided, the purpose of the 

meeting was to discuss the Student’s schedule and the Team’s goal for the Student to be around 

peers his age, but not to change the Student’s IEP.  

 

District staff reported that after transitioning the Student to the life skills room at the middle 

school, the Student still had opportunities to go to the intermediate school if his behavior was 

regulated. However, District staff also reported that the Student was generally not in the general 

education classroom at this time, and that the Student did not participate in lunch, recess, and 

specials with his peers on a consistent basis.  

 

The Complainant and several District staff also reported that the District did not re-evaluate the 

Student or convene his IEP Team before transitioning the Student from being primarily in the 

general education classroom to being primarily in the life skills room at the middle school.  

 

Amount of Special Education Hours Provided to the Student 

 

XXXXX told OCR that she provided the Student about one hour of special education services per 

day until she left for maternity leave on September 20. XXXXX said that she provided the Student 

these extra services because she thought the Student needed more special education services than 

what was provided in his IEP. Although XXXXX reported the Student needed more services, the 

XXXXX also said that she wrote the minutes in the Student’s IEP at 30 minutes every other day 

so that she would not have to make up a session if she was unable to provide the Student an hour 

of services. The Complainant told OCR that when she expressed her concerns to the Student’s 

IEP Team that the Student’s IEP did not provide for enough special education services, the Team 

assured her that the Student would be receiving more services than what his IEP required.  

 

District staff reported that the Student’s IEP was not amended after the September 16, 2021, IEP 

meeting and continued to provide for only 30 minutes of special education services 15 times per 

month. Even so, according to the Student’s schedule, the District appears to have provided the 

Student significantly more special education services than what was in his IEP, especially as the 

District transitioned the Student to the middle school. The Student’s schedule indicates that the 

District provided the Student about 175 minutes of special education services per day in October 

and about 255 minutes per day in November. The District did not provide the Student’s schedule 

for December. According to the Student’s summary of services, however, the Student only 

received between 15 to 60 minutes of special educations services per day in October, November, 

and December.  

 

Retaliation  

 

The Complainant told OCR the District retaliated against the Student during the fall 2021 

semester by requiring him to quarantine at home unnecessarily after alleging he was exposed to 

COVID-19. Specifically, the Complainant stated that because she continually advocated for the 
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Student’s special education services at the District, the District required the Student to quarantine 

for longer periods than students without disabilities and disregarded the local health department’s 

guidance that the Student could quarantine for shorter periods.  

 

For the August to September quarantine, after the District informed the Complainant on August 

28 or 29 that the Student had been exposed to COVID-19 and was required to quarantine for 

fourteen days, the Complainant called XXXXX asking if the Student could avoid the quarantine if 

he already had the COVID-19 antibodies. XXXXX told OCR that she called the LLCHD hotline 

to discuss this possibility, and the LLCHD informed her that if the Student tested positive for the 

COVID-19 antibodies, he did not have to quarantine.  

 

The Complainant emailed XXXXX on August 30, stating the Student’s antibody test came back 

negative. XXXXX told OCR she then told the Complainant that because the Student did not have 

the COVID-19 antibodies, he was required to quarantine for fourteen days. XXXXX and the 

Complainant then discussed whether the Student could come back to school if he wore a face 

shield through day fourteen.  

 

XXXXX emailed XXXXX on August 31, asking if this option was permissible. XXXXX replied that 

the Student could not wear a face shield at school because it would not provide the same level of 

protection as a mask and that she had left the Complainant a voicemail explaining that wearing a 

face shield was not an option. The Student returned to school after the two-week period ended, 

on September 10.   

 

For the October quarantine, XXXXX called the Complainant’s spouse on October 5, informing 

him that the Student had been exposed to COVID-19 and was required to quarantine for fourteen 

days from October 1, the date of exposure. The Complainant’s spouse then requested a three-way 

call with the LLCHD hotline to ensure the District was following LLCHD’s guidance. XXXXX 

told OCR that, during the call, the LLCHD stated the only way the Student could return to school 

immediately was if he wore a mask at school. The Complainant reported that while the Student 

had a mask exemption, she wanted him to wear a mask at school through day fourteen so he did 

not have to quarantine.  

 

The Complainant’s spouse emailed XXXXX on October 5, asking why the Student was required 

to quarantine when the LLCHD stated that he could return to school. In response, XXXXX stated 

that the District was requiring the Student to quarantine because it would not disregard the 

physician’s note it received on the Student’s behalf requesting a mask exemption. On October 8, 

the XXXXX emailed the Complainant stating that unless she provided an updated physician’s 

note stating that a mask exemption was no longer necessary, the Student was required to 

quarantine at home. The Student quarantined at home for two weeks and returned to school on 

October 18.  

 

In interviews with OCR, Nurse 1 and 2 reported that in addition to the Student, there was one 

other student with a medical-mask exemption at the intermediate school who was required to 

quarantine at home during the fall semester. Nurse 1 and 2 both stated that the District required 

this Student to quarantine for fourteen days.  
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Resolution of Allegations 1 and 2 

 

Based on the evidence received to date, OCR has concerns that the District may not have made 

individualized decisions regarding how to meet the Student’s needs for regular and special 

education in an at-home, quarantined environment. The evidence indicates that, even though it 

was the District’s practice to offer students new learning while they were quarantined at home, 

the District did not consider how to provide the Student his regular education while he was 

quarantined. Further, the evidence indicates that the District did not consider how to provide the 

Student special education services during his October quarantine after the Complainant’s spouse 

communicated that Zoom services might trigger the Student’s seizures. OCR is further 

concerned that the District may not have analyzed whether the Student suffered any educational 

loss due to those quarantines.  

 

OCR also has concerns that the District may have significantly changed the Student’s placement 

during the fall 2021 semester by removing him from the general education classroom without 

first re-evaluating the Student or convening the Student’s IEP Team. The evidence indicates that 

as the District transitioned the Student to the middle school because of increased behavior issues, 

the Student received significantly more special education services than his IEP required, and was 

placed in an environment more restrictive than what his IEP called for. The District made these 

changes without first re-evaluating the Student. And, according to the evidence OCR has 

obtained to date, the District also made those changes on its own, without convening the 

Student’s IEP Team or any other group knowledgeable about the Student.  

 

Prior to the completion of OCR’s investigation into this complaint, the District indicated its 

interest in entering into a voluntary resolution agreement with OCR pursuant to Section 302 of 

OCR’s Case Processing Manual. The District signed an Agreement (copy attached) on 

September 26, 2023, that, when fully implemented, will address Allegations 1 and 2. For 

Allegation 1, the Agreement requires the District to convene the Student’s IEP Team to 

determine whether the Student is entitled to compensatory services for any time during the fall of 

2021 when he was quarantined at home due to an exposure to COVID-19 and not receiving 

regular education. For Allegation 2, the Agreement requires the District to convene the Student’s 

IEP Team to re-evaluate the Student to ensure he is placed in the least restrictive environment, 

and consider whether the Student suffered an educational loss when the District moved the 

Student, in the fall of 2021, primarily into the life skills rooms at the middle school and began 

providing the Student significantly more special education than his IEP required, in an 

environment more restrictive than his IEP called for. If so, the Agreement requires the IEP Team 

to consider whether the Student is entitled to compensatory services as a result. Please consult 

the Resolution Agreement for further details.  

 

 

Analysis and Conclusion for Allegation 3 

 

OCR investigated whether the District retaliated against the Student during the fall 2021 

semester by requiring him to quarantine at home unnecessarily after alleging he was exposed to 

COVID-19. However, the evidence shows that the District had a legitimate, non-retaliatory 

reason for requiring the Student to quarantine for two, fourteen-day periods.  
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The District provided documentation showing that the District followed the LLCHD’s guidance 

when responding to COVID-19 exposures. During the fall semester, the LLCHD recommended 

that close contacts quarantine at home for fourteen days. The LLCHD’s guidance also allowed 

for close contacts to self-monitor as an alternative to quarantine, but only if they were able to 

wear a mask for fourteen days.  

 

The District determined that the Student was a close contact of a COVID-19 positive individual 

on August 27 and October 1, 2021. After both exposures, the District required the Student to 

quarantine at home for fourteen days per LLCHD guidance. While the District and the LLCHD 

discussed alternatives that would have allowed the Student to avoid quarantine—including 

testing positive for the COVID-19 antibodies or wearing a mask at school—the District had 

legitimate reasons for ultimately requiring the fourteen-day quarantine periods.  

 

Following the August to September exposure, the Student tested negative for the COVID-19 

antibodies, and the District then rejected the Complainant’s request for the Student to return to 

school wearing a face shield at school because it determined that a face shield would not provide 

the same level of protection against COVID-19 as a face mask. Following the October exposure, 

the District did not allow the Student to return to school wearing a face mask because it 

determined that it would not disregard the Student’s physician note stating that the Student was 

unable to wear a mask.  

 

The evidence also shows the District’s stated reasons for requiring the Student to quarantine for 

fourteen days were not pretext. Documentation provided by the District and statements from 

multiple District staff corroborate the District’s stated reasons for requiring the fourteen-day 

quarantine periods. Further, both XXXXX and XXXXX reported that one other student with a 

medical mask exemption from the intermediate school was also required to quarantine at home 

for fourteen days during the fall semester. Therefore, the evidence is insufficient to show that the 

District discriminated against the Student by requiring him to quarantine at home unnecessarily 

during the fall semester. Accordingly, OCR is closing Allegation 3.  

 

OCR considers this complaint resolved and will monitor the District’s implementation of the 

Resolution Agreement with respect to Allegations 1 and 2. When OCR concludes that the 

District has fully implemented the terms of the Agreement, OCR will close the complaint. If the 

District fails to carry out the Resolution Agreement, OCR may resume its investigation.  

 

This letter sets forth OCR’s determination in an individual OCR case. This letter is not a formal 

statement of OCR policy and should not be relied upon, cited, or construed as such. OCR’s 

formal policy statements are approved by a duly authorized OCR official and made available to 

the public. OCR would like to make you aware that individuals who file complaints with OCR 

may have the right to file a private suit in federal court regardless of whether OCR finds a 

violation.  

  

The District may not harass, coerce, intimidate, discriminate, or otherwise retaliate against an 

individual because that individual asserts a right or privilege under a law enforced by OCR or 
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files a complaint, testifies, or participates in an OCR proceeding. Complaints alleging such 

retaliation may be filed with OCR.   

  

Under the Freedom of Information Act, it may be necessary to release this document and related 

correspondence and records upon request. If OCR receives such a request, it will seek to protect, 

to the extent provided by law, personally identifiable information that could reasonably be 

expected to constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy if released.  

 

If you have any questions, please contact XXXXX, at (XXX) XXXXX (voice) or (202) 804-7445 

(telecommunications device for the deaf), or by email at XXXXX.  

 

 

 

       Sincerely,  

 

 

 

       XXXXX 

       Supervisory Attorney 




